
Merton Council
Licensing Sub-Committee
Membership
Councillors:
Mary Curtin
Judy Saunders
David Simpson CBE

A meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee will be held on: 
Date: 26 March 2018 
Time:  1.30 pm
Venue:  Council chamber - Merton Civic Centre, London Road, Morden 

SM4 5DX
Agenda for this meeting

1 Appointment of Chair 

2 Apologies for Absence 

3 Declarations of Pecuniary Interest 

4 Premier Inn (Proposed), 153-161 The Broadway, Wimbledon, 
SW19 1NE 

1 - 52

5 Smash, 82 The Broadway, London, SW19 1RH 53 - 104

Note on declarations of interest
Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any 
matter to be considered at the meeting.  If a pecuniary interest is declared they 
should withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of the consideration of 
that matter and must not participate in any vote on that matter.  If  members 
consider they should not participate because of a non-pecuniary interest which 
may give rise to a perception of bias, they should declare this, withdraw and not 
participate in consideration of the item.  For further advice please speak with the 
Assistant Director of Corporate Governance.
This is a public meeting and attendance by the public is encouraged and 
welcomed.  For more information about the agenda and the decision making 
process contact democratic.services@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 
3616.
Press enquiries: press@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3181
Email alerts: Get notified when agendas are published 
www.merton.gov.uk/council/committee.htm?view=emailer
For more information about Merton Council visit www.merton.gov.uk

mailto:democratic.services@merton,gov.uk
mailto:press@merton.gov.uk
http://www.merton.gov.uk/council/committee.htm?view=emailer
http://www.merton.gov.uk/


Procedure to be followed at Licensing Hearing

1. The Chair will welcome all parties and all present will be introduced/introduce 
themselves

2. The Chair will confirm the sub-committee hearing procedures, a copy of which 
was included in the notice and agenda packs sent to all parties.

3. The Chair will ask the Legal Adviser to inform those present that the sub-
committee had a briefing prior to the hearing to confirm the procedure and for 
clarification on any aspect of the application.

4. The Chair will ask Legal Adviser to confirm the process for questioning and 
whether there had been any requests for adjournments.

5. The Chair will ask the Licensing Officer if there are any technical issues they feel 
should be brought to their attention i.e. withdrawal of objector/agreed conditions
(Note: If all objections are withdrawn then the Sub-Committee may go straight to 
point 14. 
If all conditions are agreed by all parties then the Sub-Committee may go straight to 
point 14)

6. The Applicant will present their case.  Questions can then be asked of the 
Applicant by the Responsible Authorities, the interested parties and members of 
the Sub-Committee.

7. The Responsible Authorities will present their case.  Questions can then be 
asked of the Responsible Authorities by  the Applicant, the interested parties, and 
members of the Sub-Committee.

8. Presentation by any interested party.  Questions can then be asked of the 
interested party by the Applicants, the Responsible Authorities and members of 
the Sub-Committee.

9. The Chair will ask the Licensing Officer for any comments/ clarifications

10. The Chair will ask the Legal Adviser for any comments/clarifications

11. The Chair will invite closing statements by the responsible authorities

12. The Chair will invite closing statements by the interested parties

13. The Chair will invite closing statements by the Applicant

14. The Chair will announce that the Sub-Committee are retiring for private session. 
The Legal Officer and Clerk will be invited to also retire.

15. In closed session the Sub-Committee will make their decision.  They may ask the 
Legal Officer for advice during this session.

16. The Sub Committee will return and re-open for public session.

17. The Chair will invite the Legal Officer to present the advice provided during 
private session.

18. The Sub-committee’s decision will be read out either by the Chair or the Chair will 
invite the Legal Officer to do so.

19. The Chair will inform those present that all parties should receive a written copy 
of the decision notice within 5 working days, and then close the Hearing





This page is intentionally left blank



Notice of Adjournment of Hearing Page 1 of 1

London Borough of 
Merton

Licensing Act 2003
Notice of Extension of Time Limits

Date of issue of this notice:  7 March 2018
Subject of hearing: Premier Inn (Proposed), 153-161 The Broadway, Wimbledon, 
London, SW19 1NE

The Licensing authority has decided to extend the time limits applying to this matter as 
follows:
Date by which a hearing would normally be required to be held: 15 March 2018
Period of extension to time limits applying to holding a hearing: 7 Working Days
Reasons for extending the time limits: To allow the authority to make proper
arrangements for the application to be considered by a licensing sub-committee.

For enquiries about this matter please contact 
Democratic Services
Civic Centre
London Road
Morden
Surrey
SM4 5DX
Telephone: 020 8545 3357

Email: democratic.services@merton.gov.uk
Useful documents:
Licensing Act 2003 
http://www.hmso.gov.uk/acts/acts2003/20030017.htm
Merton’s Statement of Licensing policy
http://www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Sub-Committee Report 

Subject of hearing: Premier Inn (Proposed), 153-161 The Broadway, Wimbledon, 
SW19 1NE
Date: 26 March 2018
Time: 1:30pm
Venue:  Merton Civic Centre, London Road, Morden, Surrey, SM4 5DX
1. Special Policy Area (premises licences and club certificates)
1.1 The premises are in the special policy area. Accordingly the relevant section 

of Merton’s Licensing Policy is particularly relevant to this application though 
the sub-committee is to have regard to the policy as a whole.

2. Type of hearing and powers of the sub-committee
2.1 The sub-committee is required to determine the application by taking such of 

the steps set out below as it considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.

2.2 In making their determination the sub-committee must have regard to the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing objectives, guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State and Merton’s Licensing Policy.

2.3 New premises licence: s18
(i) To grant the licence subject to conditions
(ii) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable 

activities to which the application relates
(iii) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor
(iv) To reject the application.

3. Hearing papers
3.1 The applications, notices and representations for determination by the sub-

committee are contained in the hearing bundles together with any relevant 
existing licence.  This includes any documents which must be sent to any of 
the parties to the hearing under Regulation 7(2) and Schedule 3 of The 
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.  This bundle has been 
issued to all parties to the hearing.

4. Legal advice to the sub-committee
4.1 A legal officer appointed by the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance  

and Head  of Legal Services will attend the hearing to advise the sub-
committee on statutory provision and legal matters.

5. Licensing Officer comments
5.1 This is an application for a new premises licence for a hotel. It is stated there 

will be a food and beverage area on the ground floor where all licensable 
activities are proposed to take place. This area is edged in red on the ground 
floor plan 3642-L-01 A. The bedrooms are not to be licensed for authorised 
activities.

Page 3



5.2 The applicant is applying for films and the supply of alcohol both on and off 
the premises from 10:00 to 23:00 Monday to Thursday and 10:00 to midnight 
Friday to Sunday. Also late night refreshment on Friday to Sunday from 
23:00 to midnight.

5.3 Non-standard timings stated in section J of the application form would seek 
to increase authorised activity times, especially for the sale of alcohol to 24 
hours a day for hotel residents.

5.4 The application states the premises will be open 24 hours a day for hotel 
guests and from 06:00 to 23:00 Monday to Thursday and 06:00 to midnight 
Friday to Sunday for non residents.

5.5 The applicant has offered steps in the operating schedule – Section M – that 
they propose will promote the licensing objectives.

5.6 Six conditions have been agreed to be added to the operating schedule by 
the applicant after consultation with the Police. These are in the form of an 
email and form part of this report.

5.7 There is a live licence attached to 153-161 The Broadway, Wimbledon under 
the trading name Henry J Beans.

5.8 We have received four representations against this application.

For enquiries about this hearing please contact 
Democratic Services
Civic Centre
London Road
Morden
SM4 5DX

Telephone: 020 8545 3616
Email: democratic.services@merton.gov.uk

Page 4

mailto:democratic.services@merton.gov.uk


Parties to the hearing
This document forms part of the notice of hearing.
The following are parties to the hearing having submitted relevant applications, notices 
or representations under the statutory provisions indicated:

Applicant
Whitbread Group PLC

Statutory Authorities
None

Interested Parties
Sarah Holford
Mr & Mrs J Seckington
Sara Sharp
Leigh Terrafranca for Wimbledon E 
Hillside Residents Association 
(WEHRA)

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 27



P
age 28



P
age 29



P
age 30



P
age 31



P
age 32



P
age 33



P
age 34



P
age 35



P
age 36



P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



From: Sarah Holford 
Sent: 15 February 2018 16:36
To: Licensing; Licensing
Cc: Councillor Charlie Chirico; Councillor Abdul Latif; Councillor James Holmes
Subject: Premier Inn licensing application for 153-161 The Broadway SW19

Dear Sir/Madam,

I would like to object to this licensing application and I concur with the representation below made 
by WEHRA. 

The tone of the licensing application runs contrary to what was agreed with residents during a 
consultation process and accordingly in addition to WEHRA’s comments: 

- I object to the 24 hour serving of alcohol to guests. If a guest is staying at the hotel, then they will 
have access to a mini-bar which can be replenished with a simple phone-call to the Reception. There 
is no need for an extended licence, let alone a 24 hour licence. We already have excessive drinking in 
Wimbledon’s town-centre and I frequently experience drunk people wondering into South Park 
Road and arguing and shouting at 2am, 3am, 4am. Try getting to sleep while you hear someone 
vomiting outside your house.  

As you already know, this Premier Inn budget hotel is sited in the heart of the overwhelmed 
Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ) and sits within a few hundred metres of some of the recent alcohol-
related assaults.

With the likely closure of Wimbledon Police Station in the next 18 months, adding alcoholic fuel to 
the fire of evening drinking and associated increased propensity for assaults that would more than 
likely occur after excess alcohol has been consumed, I object on this ground too. The Police are 
already stretched enough without having extra problems to cope with.

Premier Inn says all its hotels have a bar and restaurant. I do not believe that either is needed given 
the central location of this hotel, and would ask you to reject the application.

However:

- If you were minded to allow a bar in this heavily saturated CIZ area, please include a condition for 
the provision of a full meal with it so that the alcohol does not become the mainstay and at the 
expense of the restaurant, especially with a whole Broadway of  endless restaurants and eateries to 
suit every palate and need.

- Please reject the request for an off-premise licence which is excessive and unacceptable especially 
with endless number of outlets, bars, clubs within metres of this hotel. This is a budget hotel, let’s 
not make it the ‘last stop in Wimbledon’ where ‘people can get served’. 

-  Please curtail licensing hours for both restaurant and bar. We do not want this hotel which backs 
directly onto and sits across from residential neighbourhoods and families with young children to be 
the magnet of all-day drinking and eating with all the problems associated with that - waste, noise, 
drunkenness, bad behaviour - particularly as the budget-element of Premier Inn hotels make them 
attractive to boisterous and unruly stag and hen night getaways. 

- Although Premier Inn asserts that the majority of its guests will be using public transport, the 
transport report does not fully back that up with 30-40 cars a night expected to roll up. 

Page 39



I can tell you from daily experience that there is barely any parking for the residents at the moment 
in my area. I often have to go round and round my CPZ area looking for somewhere to park if I 
happen to get home after 6:30 pm with heavy shopping. This will become a nightmare with a 176-
room hotel with NO parking planned apart from 2-3 disabled bays. Having such an eating/drinking 
establishment will impact residents directly, squeezing them out of the parking slots that they have 
already paid for by having permits.

In conjunction with WEHRA’s comments below, I urge the committee to refuse permission on the 
grounds of prevention of crime, disorder, and public nuisance.

If minded to approve, please include stringent conditions.

Yours sincerely,

Sarah Holford

Page 40



MR. & MRS. J. SECKINGTON 

 

 

 

Licencing 

London Borough of Merton 

1
st
 floor Access Civic Centre 

London Road 

Morden 

SM4 5DX 

 

12 Feb. 2018 

 

Dear Sirs, 

 

Premier Inn, 153/161 The Broadway, SW19 1NE New Premises Licence – 

Application Reference: WK/201710801  

 

We shall be grateful if you will please note our following objections to this 

application. 

 

The original Planning Application (16/P1149) referred to a restaurant for use by “ … 

guests …  as well as … for public use.”  

 

In our 20 May 2016 letter of objection to the Planning Application May we requested 

the Council to ‘ … ensure that sufficient constraints are put on the operator to ensure 

this is not subsequently turned into a “cash-cow” bar, open to all, with late hours. Our 

recollection of the previous use of the ground floor is that it was primarily a rough and 

rowdy bar, with police vehicles in attendance regularly, usually late at night. A 

repetition of this needs to be avoided when and if consent is granted’. 

 

We are therefore concerned to see that this licence application ids for the sale of 

Alcohol on and off the Premises between 10.00 – 23.00, Mon to Thurs., 06.00 – 00.00 

Fri. to Sun. This is very different to the original application terms and we therefore 

wish to reiterate all of our concerns which we raised in our 20 May 2016 letter and we 

believe the application will compromise: 

   The prevention of crime and disorder; 

   Public safety; 

   The prevention of public nuisance.  

 

 

Yours faithfully. 

 

  

 

 

Page 41



 

Page 42



From: Sara Sharp 
Sent: 15 February 2018 13:54
To: Licensing; Licensing
Cc: Councillor Andrew Judge; Councillor Abigail Jones; Councillor Katy Neep
Subject: Premier Inn licensing application for 153-161 The Broadway SW19 

Dear Sir/Madam,

I would like to object to this licensing application and I concur with the representation below 
made by WEHRA. I would like to add that I personally spent almost six months speaking to 
Whitbread throughout the planning process as the hotel will back onto our street. Myself and 
other residents were given assurances of non-clutter of fascia, that the focus of commercial 
space would be to serve the guests and be family-friendly to the residents of Wimbledon.

The impression I got was that this was not going to be a reenactment of Henry J Bean with 
busy bar/restaurant facilities and all the issues that come with that. The planned restaurant/bar 
operator is BIG and there is absolutely no need whatsoever to have an on-premises licence 
with so many bars/outlets on The Broadway a mere stone’s throw away. There is a large 
Majestic Wines shop right next door! Do we need to compound the drinking problems on our 
streets? 

The tone of the licensing application runs contrary to what was agreed with residents and 
accordingly in addition to WEHRA’s comments: 

- I object to the 24 hour serving of alcohol to guests. Read any Trip Advisor review on 
Premier Inn and what jumps out is the nice breakfast, reasonably-priced food. There is no 
mention of alcohol. I can understand the need to provide some alcohol if this hotel was off 
the beaten track, enroute or on the outskirts of a town, but not on a 24 hour basis. 

However,  this Premier Inn budget hotel is sited in the heart of the busting-at-the-seams 
Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ) and sits within a few hundred metres of some of the recent 
alcohol-related assaults.

Premier Inn says all its hotels have a bar and restaurant. I do not believe that either is needed 
given the central location of this hotel, and would ask you to reject the application

However:

- If you were minded to allow a bar in this heavily saturated CIZ area, please include a 
condition for the provision of a full meal with it so that the alcohol does not become the 
mainstay and at the expense of the restaurant, especially with a whole Broadway of  endless 
restaurants and eateries to suit every palate and need.

- Please reject the request for an off-premise licence which is excessive and unacceptable 
especially with Majestic Wines shop right next door, Sainsbury’s across the road selling 
alcohol, and an endless number of outlets, bars, clubs within metres of this hotel. This is a 
budget hotel. 

-  Please curtail licensing hours for both restaurant and bar. We do not want this hotel which 
backs directly onto and sits across from residential neighbourhoods and families with young 
children to be the magnet of all-day drinking and eating with all the problems associated with 

Page 43



that - waste, noise, drunkenness, bad behaviour - particularly as the budget-element of 
Premier Inn hotels make them attractive to boisterous and unruly stag and hen night 
getaways. 

- Although Premier Inn asserts that the majority of its guests will be using public transport, 
the transport report does not fully back that up with 30-40 cars a night expected to roll up. 
I can tell you from daily experience that there is barely any parking for the residents at the 
moment. I often have to go round and round my CPZ area looking for somewhere to park if I 
happen to get home after 6:30 pm with heavy shopping. This will become a nightmare with a 
176-room hotel with NO parking planned apart from 2-3 disabled bays. Having such an 
eating/drinking establishment will impact residents directly, squeezing them out of the 
parking slots that they have already paid for by having permits.

In conjunction with WEHRA’s comments below, I urge the committee to refuse permission 
on the grounds of prevention of crime, disorder, and public nuisance.
If minded to approve, please include stringent conditions.

Yours sincerely,

Sara Sharp

Page 44



 L Terrafranca
Wimbledon E Hillside Residents’ Assn

(address supplied)

14 February 2018
Licensing Officer
Merton Council
Civic Centre
London Road
London SM4 5DX

Re:  PREMIER INN NEW PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION

Dear sir/madam:
I write on behalf of WEHRA to voice our views on the above application.  We have 
requested some further details (layout, elevation, fascia, covers and conditions re: 
customer parking, waste mgmt., ASB etc.), and are disappointed no further 
information has been provided.  

WEHRA has been involved in Licensing issues in Wimbledon since 2001, when the 
concept of a CIZ was being considered prior to enactment of the Licensing Act.  Our 
homes are in a purely residential area on the perimeter of the town, and every year 
the impacts are becoming more challenging, deteriorating the neighbourhood and 
impinging on our right to quiet enjoyment.  We also work with the Union of 
Wimbledon Residents Associations, some of whose views are also included in this 
letter.

Background
Permission for a 176 room Premier Inn was granted  a few years ago, replacing an 
aged office block and Henry Bean hamburger restaurant on the ground floor.  The 
neighbourhood worked closely with senior Whitbread Management to ensure that 
the plans were suited to the needs of the immediate area and wider Wimbledon.

Strangely the proposal associated with this Application is not what we were told 
would happen, regarding ground floor commercial space at 153-177 The Broadway.

We were told it would become a restaurant similar in design to a ‘new template’, the 
example given was in Hertfordshire, where a local product - Lavender - was included 
in the design, right down to the gifts sold in the reception area.  We were told that 
Wimbledon would be in that same format, and that the Common/green community 
spaces and/or tennis would be our theme for the ground floor, and that the street 
scene would fit well with the immediate streetscape. We discussed how Metrobank 
was following a similar path, and it looked quite promising.

What has happened to all that?  This application we now understand is for a huge 
stand alone bar/restaurant (perhaps 250-300 cover), to be open until midnight and 
to serve alcohol on/off premises, and also to allow the operator to serve to hotel 

Page 45



guests 24 hours of every day.   Not a great setting, for the submission of such an 
ambitious application.

Possibility of a large stand alone bar/restaurant :  Is it Bar & Block ?
We have heard the venue is a chain https://www.barandblock.co.uk/kings-cross 
Normally that information wouldn’t be a secret – it is an important component for 
the Licensing Committee Members when assessing a new premises application in 
Wimbledon.  

In our view this type of venue would be unwelcomed here, where the bulk of footfall 
is daytime and early evening, from local residents, homeowners, families with school 
aged children.  

We treasure Independent shops, cafes and restaurants; and big, shiny chain 
businesses that have no distinctive qualities or characteristics are not 
wanted/needed, and indeed are actively discouraged by the FutureWimbledon 
team.  We’ve already got The Alexandra, Hand & Racquet, Darwin & Wallace, Gauge 
& Gadget, and don’t need another, especially here. This narrow end of the 
Broadway, where footfall is low and night time disturbances and ’sirens’ (incidents 
requiring police and ambulances) cause a great nuisance to local residents and their 
children who are trying to sleep.  

Fascia/Front Elevation
Apparently the frontage will be of a heavily commercial nature, despite what was 
presented by Whitbread and approved by Merton Council.  Any ‘noisy’ frontage will 
jar with the make-up of this part of the Broadway.  There are many wonderful 
community serving amenities such as Polka, YMCA, Trinity Church – and the 
streetscape will become more overtly commercial, and much less appealing.  You are 
joining a community, and your business needs to complement the local area, not 
degrade it.   We were told very clearly the restaurant was for the hotel guests.  Now 
we understand the entrance will be from The Broadway,  not inside the hotel.  This is 
entirely unacceptable to us.

Cumulative Impact Zone: Full to Bursting
This CIZ is saturated.  For every new restaurant/bar/deli that opens, another 
closes.  So what is the point of adding even one more Licence (particularly to 
one so large)?
 
From memory, an Asian noodle bar came and went in about six months; the 
ice cream store is about to fold, as they aren't drawing customers, 
Chimichanga sells alcohol on its own, as they can't lure enough people in to 
eat there, etc.  Meanwhile, the Library 'coffee shop' is selling eat in meals and 
taking over more floor space, Joe & The Juice, Itsu, Darwin & Wallace (307 
seat pub open 9 am-2 am) all are open or will do this spring, and BaBoom 
have been granted a licence and will open across from Centre Court, and 12 
Hartfield will be wanting to resume their 300 cover venue in the coming year 
or so. 
 

Page 46

https://www.barandblock.co.uk/kings-cros


At this moment there are four further new premises licence applications on the 
books:  Vintage Fish, Sound Lounge, Smash, and to all that we’re asked to 
agree to a brand new, large, separate restaurant and bar.

Surely the Committee must consider the cumulative impact of these new 
venues on the CPZ CUMULATIVELY.  Many if not most of these new 
premises licences need to be refused, not approved in the coming months 
and years.  It is the spirit and letter of the law that citizens expect Merton 
Council to honour, not the loopholes.

Since the previous venue Henry Bean was failing for many years, was closed for 
perhaps five years or so, and the licence has expired, many new venues in the town 
have been granted permission in their stead.  So now the Committee must consider 
what is best suited to this area today.  We have too many large sized premises either 
open, or just about to re-open, and the Police, NHS and other emergency services 
cannot sustain any further degradation of community services and amenities by yet 
another huge drinking establishment.  We certainly do not need another large 
restaurant open from dawn until midnight.

 On/Off Premises supply of Alcohol
It is wrong to seek both on and off premises sales, in our view.  (If the 
Committee were minded to approve, then only on-sales, with a substantial 
meal.)  We do not need one more drop of alcohol on the streets.  The Council 
can't keep the litter clear as it stands, local residents don't wish further 
drunken disturbances around their homes, St George’s ER is clogged with 
drunks/druggies, and the Police resource shouldn't be taken for granted. 

Parking, noise, extraction, air pollution
There are several other areas of concern with this proposal, related to the 
operation of such a large, mid-market venue.  We know that around 30% of 
your customers will arrive by private vehicle.  There is not one spare parking 
space in the area, and your customers would be stealing residents’ parking 
bays.  They will make our air quality worse by adding more NO2 and 
particulate, they will disturb locals as they leave, drop litter, cigarette packs 
and  sadly, often also vomit/urine.  Your cooking extractors will cause noise 
pollution, grease and smells in the atmosphere and further disturb local 
homeowners right to quiet enjoyment.  
 
To summarise, we urge the Committee to refuse permission on the 
grounds of prevention of crime, disorder and public nuisance.  Any new 
business on the ground floor – if not for the exclusive use of the hotel itself (as 
promised), must serve Wimbledon people.  There are over 30,000 
professional, upmarket households here, and as a first priority our needs must 
be provided for.  We don’t want or need another big shiny chain restaurant.

Sincerely yours,
Leigh Terrafranca, on behalf of Wimbledon E Hillside Residents’ Assn
WEHRA: FutureWimbledon Design Competition Winners – Creative 
Communities Award
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



From: John Gaunt 
Sent: 28 February 2018 14:00
To: Leigh's iphone
Cc: Amy Dumitrescu; Licensing
Subject: RE: Proposed Premier Inn Wimbledon - Hearing Monday 26 March - 1:30pm

Dear Leigh

Thank you for your email.  I have annotated the below (in blue) to the best of my information; 
I hope that this may help and as indicated in my original email, if a conversation would assist, 
please give me a call.

Regards 

John Gaunt 
Consultant 

From: Leigh's iphone 
Sent: 26 February 2018 15:47
To: John Gaunt
Cc: Amy Dumitrescu
Subject: Proposed Premier Inn Wimbledon - Hearing Monday 26 March - 1:30pm

Dear John, 
Thank you for your email below. 

The reason no Authority has put in a Representation is because you have agreed some of their 
Conditions. The community is another authority, albeit with a small ‘a’ - but your client will be 
joining a busy, happy residential community, and to ensure the new business has a good start here, 
you must listen also to our concerns. 

Would you kindly provide a drawing demonstrating what you mean by ‘one discreet sign’ ? Most 
applicants here in Wimbledon include this as a gesture of goodwill.  This has only just been agreed 
with the police and a design for such has yet to be completed. The intent of the condition is 
however clear and as such was acceptable to the police.

Also would you please be clear about cover numbers. You say a minimum of 70 percent of 
something - is that 176?  Please confirm the actual cover number your client intends to serve. The 
intention is that the emphasis will be on a majority of seated covers; this will be a food level 
operation. I will seek to get an indicative number of seated covers likely to be provided. I am not 
sure where you get 176 but I will check.

Finally the issue of parking.  Would you please provide a POV on the loss of amenity to local 
homeowners, caused by restaurant visitors arriving by private vehicle. Also a POV on issues related 
to these guests departing after 11 pm weekdays and midnight  on Thursday (a work night), 
Friday/Saturday.  Parking and highways is a planning consideration as I am sure that you are 
aware.

From experience transport  is very much linked to anti social behaviour, noise nuisance, litter and in 
some even cases crime.  We know our neighbourhood, and we ask this, to make your client aware of 
problems related to this sensitive location immediately adjoining family homes.  Our clients are well 
experienced at operating premises such as this in sensitive locations – and without issue. The 

Page 49



hotel residents will be the closest ‘affected’ and their amenity is a paramount concern to our 
clients along with the amenity of the wider community as well.

The former building was an office block, closed at 6 pm, and the majority of staff used public 
transport.

Thank you in advance for your reply.

Kind regards,

Leigh Terrafranca, on behalf of WEHRA

Sent from my iPhone

From: John Gaunt 
Sent: 26 February 2018 12:40
To: 
Cc: Amy Dumitrescu; Licensing
Subject: Proposed Premier Inn Wimbledon - Hearing Monday 26 March - 1:30pm
 
Good morning
 
We act for Whitbread Premier Inn on whose behalf we have lodged a premises licence for 
the above development.  We are advised that representations against our client’s 
application have been received from you.
 
If you felt that a conversation or indeed a meeting might assist to attempt to alleviate your 
concerns than please let us know.
 
However we can confirm in any event that:
 

 There are no authority representations to this application against what is proposed, 
and particularly none from the Metropolitan Police and/or Environmental Health

 Following a constructive dialogue with the police, the following additional conditions 
– beyond those proposed within our application – have been agreed to be attached 
to any licence granted and these have been set out below. Clearly these are 
designed in part to reflect the location of the intended premises and to seek to 
reinforce the intentions of our clients through appropriate and proportionate 
conditions.  These are:

1.      There will be no overt external signage of the proposed Bar & Block 
Steakhouse unit save for one discreet sign adjacent to the entrance. 
 Otherwise the building will be overtly signed as a Premier Inn.
2.      There will be a minimum number of covers representing not less than 70 
% of the overall occupancy for the Ground Floor licensed food and area. 
3.      Food and beverage provision will be substantially food led and ancillary 
to the principal operation of the premises as a hotel.
4.      No admission or re-admission at weekends after 11.00pm save for hotel 
residents and their bone fide guests.  
5.      A personal licence holder on duty after 7.00pm Thursdays – Saturdays 
whilst the premises are open to non-residents.
6.      CCTV to cover the lift lobby entrances on all floors and all entrance and 
exit points – and of course the ground floor licensed area. There will be the 
usual retention for 28/31 days with images being made available on proper 
request under Data Protection rules and when the premises are open to non-
residents.

Page 50



 Please also be aware in terms of specifics raised (and in no particular order):
o 24 hour licensing for hotel residents is a usual and expected feature in such 

developments; Premier Inn rooms do not have mini-bars. Please note the 
limitation on admission and re-admission contained in the above.

o A food and beverage facility is available at all Premier Inns, part of the brand 
expectation and experience.

o Off sales from the premises are explicated restricted to persons taking drinks 
from the licensed area to the unlicensed hotel bedrooms. There is no intention 
for drinks to be taken from the premises into the wider external area or wider 
locality.

o As you may be aware, licensing and planning are distinct and separate 
regimes. Transport considerations, for example, do not usually form part of a 
licensing determination being within the usual remit of planning.

o In respect of the food and beverage offering here, it is indeed intended that 
this should be a Bar & Block Steakhouse, as the police are aware, a relatively 
new concept, very much food led - and a number of which are located in 
what might be described as highly ‘sensitive’ locations where they are trading 
without issue or any adverse impact on the licensing objectives locally.

 Insofar as this has to go to a hearing, I can confirm that we will be circulating a 
skeleton argument in advance of the hearing setting out the detail of my client’s 
case and the legal context in which the application will fall to be determined.

 
I look forward to hearing from you and if a conversation would assist, please do not hesitate 
to give me a call.  My mobile as below is likely best.  I hope to hear from you. Many thanks.
 

Regards 

John Gaunt 
Consultant 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Sub-Committee Report 
Subject of hearing: Smash, 82 The Broadway, London, SW19 1RH
Date: 26 March 2018
Time: 1.30pm 
Venue: Merton Civic Centre, London Road, Morden, Surrey, SM4 5DX
1. Special Policy Area (premises licences and club certificates)
1.1 The premises are in the special policy area. Accordingly the relevant section 

of Merton’s Licensing Policy is particularly relevant to this application though 
the sub-committee is to have regard to the policy as a whole.

2. Type of hearing and powers of the sub-committee
2.1 The sub-committee is required to determine the application by taking such of 

the steps set out below as it considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.

2.2 In making their determination the sub-committee must have regard to the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing objectives, guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State and Merton’s Licensing Policy.

2.3 New premises licence: s18
(i) To grant the licence subject to conditions
(ii) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable 

activities to which the application relates
(iii) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor
(iv) To reject the application.

3. Hearing papers
3.1 The applications, notices and representations for determination by the sub-

committee are contained in the hearing bundle (attached) together with any 
relevant existing licence.  This includes any documents which must be sent 
to any of the parties to the hearing under Regulation 7(2) and Schedule 3 of 
The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.  This bundle has been 
issued to all parties to the hearing and forms part of this report.

4. Legal advice to the sub-committee
4.1 A legal officer appointed by the South London Legal Partnership will attend 

the hearing to advise the sub-committee on statutory provision and legal 
matters.

5. Licensing Officer Comments
5.1 This is an application for a new premises licence.
5.2 The premises already benefits from a premises licence. The premises licence 

holder is the same as the applicant for this application. The current licence is 
included in this report for your information.

Page 53

Agenda Item 5



5.3 The application is for films, live music, recorded music, performance of dance 
and anything similar to these (box H) to take place from 10:00 until 02:30 the 
following day on Monday to Thursday, 10:00 to 03:30 the following day on 
Friday and Saturday and 10:00 to 01:30 on Sunday.

5.4 For late night refreshment to take place from 23:00 until 02:30 the following 
day on Monday to Thursday, 23:00 to 03:30 the following day on Friday and 
Saturday and 23:00 to 01:30 on Sunday.

5.5 The supply of alcohol on and off the premises from 10:00 until 02:00 the 
following day on Monday to Thursday, 10:00 to 03:00 the following day on 
Friday and Saturday and 10:00 to 01:00 on Sunday.

5.6 Opening times place from 10:00 until 02:30 the following day Monday to 
Thursday, 10:00 to 03:30 the following day Friday and Saturday and 10:00 to 
01:30 on Sunday.

5.7 There are non standard timings requested for New Year’s Eve and Bank 
Holiday Sundays.

5.8 The only change from the existing authorisations appears to be an extra half 
on added on to Sunday for films.

5.9 There are points offered as conditions in the operating schedule.
5.10 The plan appears to be the same as the plan attached to the current 

premises licence.
5.11 The applicant’s representative has stated in a covering letter that after 

meeting with the Police Licensing Officer, it was agreed some conditions on 
the current licence could be changed and the licence tidied up and if the new 
licence is granted as applied for or agreed by the premises licence holder, 
the existing licence will be surrendered. This letter is also attached to this 
report.

5.12 We have received correspondence from K Wiggert who made a 
representation that they wish to withdraw the sections of their representation 
that refer to the extension of hours.

5.13 We have received five representations, two of which are in support of the 
application.

For enquiries about this hearing please contact 
Democratic Services
Civic Centre
London Road
Morden
SM4 5DX

Telephone: 020 8545 3357
Email: democratic.services@merton.gov.uk

Page 54

mailto:democratic.services@merton.gov.uk


Parties to the hearing
This document forms part of the notice of hearing.
The following are parties to the hearing having submitted relevant applications, notices 
or representations under the statutory provisions indicated:

Applicant
Barclub Training Limited

Statutory Authorities
Metropolitan Police – IN SUPPORT

Interested Parties
Councillor Charlie Chirico 
Leigh Terrafranca for WEHRA 
(Wimbledon E Hillside Residents 
Association)
Kristian Wiggert
Ben Ford – IN SUPPORT 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                     

Licensing Authority Reference: «WORKID»

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT
Licensing Team
London Borough of Merton
14th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road
Morden, Surrey
SM4 5DX

Tel: 020 8274 4901
www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

LICENSING ACT 2003

Part A
Premises licence

Premises licence number LN/000000804

Part 1 - Premises details
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Smash
82 The Broadway
London
SW19 1RH

Where the licence is time limited, the dates

Not applicable

The opening hours of the premises

Monday 10:00 - 02:30
Tuesday 10:00 - 02:30
Wednesday 10:00 - 02:30
Thursday 10:00 - 02:30
Friday 10:00 - 03:30
Saturday 10:00 - 03:30
Sunday 10:00 - 01:30

When New Year's Eve is on a weekday, from 10.00 on New Year's Eve (12:00 if 
a Sunday) until the commencement of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

On Bank Holiday Sundays until 03:30 the day following.

Page 77



                                                                     

Licensing Authority Reference: «WORKID»

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT
Licensing Team
London Borough of Merton
14th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road
Morden, Surrey
SM4 5DX

Tel: 020 8274 4901
www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

Sale & supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off supplies

On and Off the premises

Licensable activities and permitted times authorised by the licence

Alcohol Sales

On and Off the premises

Monday 10:00 - 02:00
Tuesday 10:00 - 02:00
Wednesday 10:00 - 02:00
Thursday 10:00 - 02:00
Friday 10:00 - 03:00
Saturday 10:00 - 03:00
Sunday 10:00 - 01:00

When New Year's Eve is on a weekday, from 10.00 on New Year's Eve (12:00 if 
a Sunday) until the commencement of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

On Bank Holiday Sundays until 03:30 the day following.

Exhibition of a Film

Indoors

Monday 10:00 - 02:30
Tuesday 10:00 - 02:30
Wednesday 10:00 - 02:30
Thursday 10:00 - 02:30
Friday 10:00 - 03:30
Saturday 10:00 - 03:30
Sunday 10:00 - 01:00

When New Year's Eve is on a weekday, from 10.00 on New Year's Eve (12:00 if 
a Sunday) until the commencement of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

On Bank Holiday Sundays until 03:30 the day following.

Page 78



                                                                     

Licensing Authority Reference: «WORKID»

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT
Licensing Team
London Borough of Merton
14th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road
Morden, Surrey
SM4 5DX

Tel: 020 8274 4901
www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

Live Music

Indoors

Monday 10:00 - 02:30
Tuesday 10:00 - 02:30
Wednesday 10:00 - 02:30
Thursday 10:00 - 02:30
Friday 10:00 - 03:30
Saturday 10:00 - 03:30
Sunday 10:00 - 01:30

When New Year's Eve is on a weekday, from 10.00 on New Year's Eve (12:00 if 
a Sunday) until the commencement of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

On Bank Holiday Sundays until 03:30 the day following.

Recorded Music

Indoors

Monday 10:00 - 02:30
Tuesday 10:00 - 02:30
Wednesday 10:00 - 02:30
Thursday 10:00 - 02:30
Friday 10:00 - 03:30
Saturday 10:00 - 03:30
Sunday 10:00 - 01:30

When New Year's Eve is on a weekday, from 10.00 on New Year's Eve (12:00 if 
a Sunday) until the commencement of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

On Bank Holiday Sundays until 03:30 the day following.

When New Year's Eve is on a weekday, from 10.00 on New Year's Eve (12:00 if 
a Sunday) until the commencement of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

On Bank Holiday Sundays until 03:30 the day following.

Background only - e.g. TV and Radio etc. 24 Hours.

Page 79



                                                                     

Licensing Authority Reference: «WORKID»

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT
Licensing Team
London Borough of Merton
14th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road
Morden, Surrey
SM4 5DX

Tel: 020 8274 4901
www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

Performance of Dance

Indoors

Monday 10:00 - 02:30
Tuesday 10:00 - 02:30
Wednesday 10:00 - 02:30
Thursday 10:00 - 02:30
Friday 10:00 - 03:30
Saturday 10:00 - 03:30
Sunday 10:00 - 01:30

When New Year's Eve is on a weekday, from 10.00 on New Year's Eve (12:00 if 
a Sunday) until the commencement of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

On Bank Holiday Sundays until 03:30 the day following.

Facilities for Music

Indoors

Monday 10:00 - 02:30
Tuesday 10:00 - 02:30
Wednesday 10:00 - 02:30
Thursday 10:00 - 02:30
Friday 10:00 - 03:30
Saturday 10:00 - 03:30
Sunday 10:00 - 01:30

When New Year's Eve is on a weekday, from 10.00 on New Year's Eve (12:00 if 
a Sunday) until the commencement of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

On Bank Holiday Sundays until 03:30 the day following.

Page 80



                                                                     

Licensing Authority Reference: «WORKID»

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT
Licensing Team
London Borough of Merton
14th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road
Morden, Surrey
SM4 5DX

Tel: 020 8274 4901
www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

Facilities for Dancing

Indoors

Monday 10:00 - 02:30
Tuesday 10:00 - 02:30
Wednesday 10:00 - 02:30
Thursday 10:00 - 02:30
Friday 10:00 - 03:30
Saturday 10:00 - 03:30
Sunday 10:00 - 01:30

When New Year's Eve is on a weekday, from 10.00 on New Year's Eve (12:00 if 
a Sunday) until the commencement of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

On Bank Holiday Sundays until 03:30 the day following.

Anything Similar to Facilities for Music and Dancing

Indoors

Monday 10:00 - 02:30
Tuesday 10:00 - 02:30
Wednesday 10:00 - 02:30
Thursday 10:00 - 02:30
Friday 10:00 - 03:30
Saturday 10:00 - 03:30
Sunday 10:00 - 01:30

When New Year's Eve is on a weekday, from 10.00 on New Year's Eve (12:00 if 
a Sunday) until the commencement of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

On Bank Holiday Sundays until 03:30 the day following.

Page 81



                                                                     

Licensing Authority Reference: «WORKID»

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT
Licensing Team
London Borough of Merton
14th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road
Morden, Surrey
SM4 5DX

Tel: 020 8274 4901
www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

Anything Similar to Music and Dancing

Indoors

Monday 10:00 - 02:30
Tuesday 10:00 - 02:30
Wednesday 10:00 - 02:30
Thursday 10:00 - 02:30
Friday 10:00 - 03:30
Saturday 10:00 - 03:30
Sunday 10:00 - 01:30

When New Year's Eve is on a weekday, from 10.00 on New Year's Eve (12:00 if 
a Sunday) until the commencement of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

On Bank Holiday Sundays until 03:30 the day following.

Late Night Refreshment

Indoors

Monday 23:00 - 02:30
Tuesday 23:00 - 02:30
Wednesday 23:00 - 02:30
Thursday 23:00 - 02:30
Friday 23:00 - 03:30
Saturday 23:00 - 03:30
Sunday 23:00 - 01:30

When New Year's Eve is on a weekday, from 10.00 on New Year's Eve (12:00 if 
a Sunday) until the commencement of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

On Bank Holiday Sundays until 03:30 the day following.

The premises may also provide private entertainment for the purposes of gain 
at any time.

Page 82



                                                                     

Licensing Authority Reference: «WORKID»

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT
Licensing Team
London Borough of Merton
14th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road
Morden, Surrey
SM4 5DX

Tel: 020 8274 4901
www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

Part 2
Name, (registered) address, telephone number of holder(s) of premises licence

Barclub Trading Limited
36 Drury Lane
London
WC2B 5RR

020 73415313

Registered number of holder, ie company number, charity number etc.

5858842

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises 
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Issuing authority and licence number of personal licence held by designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Page 83



                                                                     

Licensing Authority Reference: «WORKID»

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT
Licensing Team
London Borough of Merton
14th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road
Morden, Surrey
SM4 5DX

Tel: 020 8274 4901
www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

ANNEX 1 TABLE OF MANDATORY CONDITIONS UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

1. That no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises 
licence, or
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or 
his personal licence is suspended.

2. That every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a 
person who holds a personal licence.

3. Where one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, 
each such individual must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority by a licence granted 
under the Private Security Industry Act 2001 or entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of 
section 4 of the Private Security Industry Act 2001.

4. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
 
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale 
or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises –
 

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 
encourage, individuals to –

 
i. drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 

alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply 
alcohol), or 

ii. drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in 
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, 
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness 
in any favourable manner; 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

Page 84



                                                                     

Licensing Authority Reference: «WORKID»

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT
Licensing Team
London Borough of Merton
14th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road
Morden, Surrey
SM4 5DX

Tel: 020 8274 4901
www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 
customers where it is reasonably available. 

6. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an 
age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply 
of alcohol. 

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that 
the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification 
policy. 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, 
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either - 
(a) a holographic mark, or 
(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

7. The responsible person must ensure that - 
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance 
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 
following measures - 
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 
available to customers on the premises; and 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol 
to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

8. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off 
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.
 
9. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1— 
(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; 
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula— 

P = D + (D × V)

where - 
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged 
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added 
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
premises licence— 
(i) the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 

Page 85



                                                                     

Licensing Authority Reference: «WORKID»

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT
Licensing Team
London Borough of Merton
14th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road
Morden, Surrey
SM4 5DX

Tel: 020 8274 4901
www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a 
licence; 
(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 
(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added 
Tax Act 1994. 
Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this 
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall 
be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest 
penny. 

Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 
on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the 
second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol 
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.  

10. The admission of children to the exhibition of any film is to be restricted in accordance 
with any recommendation made by the relevant film classification body or relevant licensing 
authority.

11. No condition may be attached to the licence as to the nature of the plays which may be 
performed, or the manner of performing plays, under a licence that permits the performance 
of plays.

Page 86



                                                                     

Licensing Authority Reference: «WORKID»

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT
Licensing Team
London Borough of Merton
14th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road
Morden, Surrey
SM4 5DX

Tel: 020 8274 4901
www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

Annex 2
Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

1. The Licensee (or his nominated Manager of the premises) shall take all 
reasonable steps to ensure that the passageway leading to Kings Road, SW19 is 
clear of obstruction at all times that the premises open to the public.

2. The premises shall not be used for the purpose of this Licence if the rear 
passageway leading to Kings Road, SW19 is not available for the free and easy 
evacuation of persons from the premises.

3. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 
minimum requirement of the Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will 
be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV shall continually record whilst the Premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the Premises. 
All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with a date and 
time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon 
the request of Police or authorised officer through the entire 31 day period.

4. A staff member from the Premises who is conversant with the operation of the 
CCTV system shall be on the Premises at all times when the Premises is open. The 
staff member must be able to provide the Police or authorised Council Officer 
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when 
requested.

5. No person under the age of 18 shall be permitted on the premises after 20:00 
hours.

Conditions attached following a minor variation - 23 March 2017

6. All security staff working outside the venue must wear high visibility jackets or 
vests.

7. Body worn video cameras must be in use by all security staff and retained for a 
minimum of 28 days. Footage must be made available to Police on request and 
without unreasonable delay.

8. On Fridays and Saturdays, at all times until the premises closes, a minimum of 2 
uniformed security staff must be present and responsible for the management of 
customers outside the venue.

9. No more than 15 persons will be permitted to use the outside ground floor 
smoking area at any one time. The area must at all times be managed by a 
member of security staff.

Page 87



                                                                     

Licensing Authority Reference: «WORKID»

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT
Licensing Team
London Borough of Merton
14th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road
Morden, Surrey
SM4 5DX

Tel: 020 8274 4901
www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

Annex 3

Conditions Imposed Following a Hearing on 28/05/2015

1. An electronic identification scanning device must be used at the premises and 
all customers entering the premises after 22:00hrs must be recorded on the 
device. Information recorded by the device must be made available to Police on 
request and without unreasonable delay.

2. If the electronic scanning device fails, then the device will be replaced within 
five working days.

3. On Fridays and Saturdays after 22.00pm until closing a street warden shall be 
employed to monitor the outside of the premises so as to promote the licensing 
objectives.

4. All staff to receive training on the Licensing Act 2003 and the licensing 
objectives, on a regular basis.

5. Drinking water should be made proactively available (i.e. not only on request) in 
all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold for consumption on the premises.

6. No drinks are to be taken off the premises in open containers (e.g. glasses or 
open bottles (preventing use of containers as weapons, and to prevent 
consumption of alcohol in surrounding streets after individuals have left the 
premises).

7. 'Drinkaware' will be promoted throughout the business website and drinking 
sensibly and appropriately will feature on any menus and marketing literature.

8. Prominent signage shall be displayed at all exits from the premises, requesting 
that customers leave quietly.

9. That the roof terrace shall close at 11pm on Sundays, Mondays, Tuesdays, 
Wednesdays and Thursdays, and shall close at 00.00 midnight on Fridays and 
Saturdays.

10. That acoustic attenuation measures shall be put in place for the rear fire exit 
door, to the satisfaction of the Environmental Health Pollution Control Manager.

11. That the rear door shall be closed, save for emergency exit and egress, and an 
SIA door supervisor shall regularly monitor that the door is not open and that there 
are no customers located in the rear alleyway.

Page 88



                                                                     

Licensing Authority Reference: «WORKID»

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT
Licensing Team
London Borough of Merton
14th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road
Morden, Surrey
SM4 5DX

Tel: 020 8274 4901
www.merton.gov.uk/licensing

12. The speakers shall be isolated from the structure of the building to the 
satisfaction of the Environmental Health Pollution Control Manager.

13. A noise limiter shall be operated on the premises and its settings shall be 
assessed and approved by the Environmental Health Pollution Control Manager.

14. That a litter pick and street cleansing shall take place outside the premises on 
Kings Road and The Broadway on a daily basis.

Annex 4

Premises Plan: Drawing 'L01 D' and two other (untitled) plans submitted with minor 
variation application of 03/10/2017.

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 91



P
age 92



Page 93



Page 94



From: Ben Ford
Sent: 19 February 2018 09:15
To: Licensing
Subject: WK201711465 - Smash License Extension.

Dear Sir

I am a resident of Kings Road, and I support this application. I think we
should be doing as much as we can to support Wimbledon Town Centre’s night time
activity.

Smash has been reasonably well received. Adds a new dimension to the night time
offer and is located on the Broadway where these activities should be based. I know
there are some residential premises close by but that is secondary to town centre
activities.

I cannot see the proposal impacting adversely on crime, noise or children, certainly with
other late night premises along that strip.

It might also encourage people to leave South Park Gardens after dark when it has
been locked which can result in a noise, crime and public nuisance issue within a
residential neighbourhood.

Kind regards,
Ben Ford

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Councillor Charlie Chirico 
Sent: 18 February 2018 17:42
To: Licensing
Cc: Councillor James Holmes; Councillor Abdul Latif; 
Subject: Smash 82 The Broadway ref wk201711465

Dear sir or madam 

I object in the strongest terms to the new licensing application by Smash, 82 The Broadway, on 
behalf of Trinity residents. Another licensing application whereby families who live less than a 
stone’s throw from the venue are adversely affected and their right to a family life ignored. Any 
new license only fuels the alcohol fuelled problems that currently exist on the Broadway and 
Trinity councillors ask that residents are put first and this application refused. 

The hours that have been applied for are weekdays until 2am and 3am on a Fri/ Sat. When are 
Trinity residents expected to sleep? Trinity councillors ask the licensing committee to refuse this 
selfish application, with consideration to the following:

1. Prevention of crime and disorder. Trinity councillors would like LC to note the problems that 
are connected with increased consumption of alcohol and a consequential increase in disorder.

2. Public safety. Families and young children that live in Trinity ward are adversely affected by 
intoxicated adults that linger in their roads after close of such venues, fearing for their personal 
safety as well as that of their property. Furthermore the venue has a responsibility to the 
consumers of such alcohol and the adverse health effects which will only be exasperated by 
selling them alcohol until 3am at the weekend.

3. The prevention of public nuisance. Consumers of alcohol, who have been permitted to drink 
until 2 or 3am will add to the nuisance on the Broadway, loitering until after close on nearby 
streets where residents are trying to sleep not to mention the high levels of noise such consumers 
generate.

4. The protection of children from harm. Trinity is a ward full of young families with little 
children who enjoy venues such as the Polka theatre. An example should be set to the future of 
Trinity ward that they should not be distributed in the middle of the night by drunken brawlers.

The problem in Trinity ward is already problematic with such applications, this addition causes 
more problems as set out above and does nothing for Triniy residents.

Cllrs Holmes, Latif and myself will continue to stand up against these.

Many thanks

Cllr Charlie Chirico 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Leigh's iphone 
Sent: 01 March 2018 10:51
To: Licensing; Licensing
Cc: Councillor David Simpson; Councillor David Williams; Councillor Daniel Holden
Subject: SMASH, 82 The Broadway

Dear Sir/Madam:
I write on behalf of Wimbledon E Hillside Residents’ Assn to voice our views on the 
above New Premise Licence.

We are pleased the owners have given up on the previous nightclub, PoNaNa. The new 
venture - Smash - appears to be gaining a following, but it is still very early days.

We do not feel that the new ‘ping pong and sports’ format lends itself well to the 
proposed 2:30/3:30 am closing times. As a new licence application, we had expected 
the owner to reduce the hours of operation to more sensible times, better suited to the 
location immediately adjoining homes.  For example we would have expected midnight 
closure Sunday to Thursday, and 1 pm on weekends: Sat and Sunday. 

This area is a CIZ. The later night visitors (most of them are not from Wimbledon) 
become so drunken, drugged and rowdy, even a well-managed venue has difficulty with 
the very late night visitors who come here solely to ‘get crazy’ and leave the town in 
much worse shape than when they arrived. 

For these reasons we object to this application for a new premises.  If the owner wishes 
to be open later than midnight weekdays and 1 am weekends, we believe CCTV 
monitoring - inside and out - is absolutely essential. 

Especially with the Pod Bar across the road, and Wibbas Down so close by, some of 
the troublemakers who frequent these places will without doubt find their way into 
SMASH in the early hours of morning.

This venue is still owned by the same people who owned and operated PoNaNa, with 
the knowledge of all the problems their venue caused in the town.  Smash is not 
‘entirely new’ as has been suggested, but still is linked to the people who knowingly ran 
- in our view - a pretty seedy establishment.

While the number of door staff might not need to be as many as with PoNaNa, it is too 
soon to be eliminating door staff and also reducing requirements for scanning 
equipment, in our view. 

Looking at this from residents’ perspective, we not want to have to return in a year for a 
Review. 

Page 99



The Committee should not be hasty in removing safely conditions put in to protect local 
residents, neighbouring businesses and other well intentioned visitors to WTC, when 
the new business has not even been operating one year.  

As evidence of the present late night CIZ activity, last weekend the street litter strewn 
everywhere, vomit and urine was so severe, the entire street cleansing team was called 
in as an emergency, so that locals wouldn’t see how awful our beloved town had 
become overnight. We still found a large plate or sheet of glass window smashed by 
vandals or blind drunks fighting EVERY two or three weeks. This kind of incident 
happens after midnight, and we need the culprits sent packing, not invited to linger 
longer, and damage the town along the way.

Local people do love Wimbledon, and we believe any relaxation of the Conditions of the 
Smash Licence should be refused, until the business has proven itself to be more 
suitable venture for the primary stakeholders in Future Wimbledon, local Homeowners.

This proposal should be refused to ensure prevention of public nuisance, prevention of 
crime and public safety. 

Thank you for consideration of our views.

Yours sincerely, 

Leigh Terrafranca, for WEHRA

Page 100



From: Kristian Wiggert 
Sent: 28 February 2018 17:56
To: Licensing
Cc: Councillor Charlie Chirico; Councillor Abdul Latif; Councillor James Holmes; 
Subject: New Premises Licence Application WK/201711465–Objection

Dear Sir or Madam

We wish to strongly object to the new above-reference new premises application, which is in 
relation to “Smash” on 82 The Broadway.

We live at 18 Kings Road, not far from the premises in question. The area surrounding the 
premises towards the north (Kings Road and South Park Road) is almost exclusively residential. 
Not infrequently in the past, we and other residents have experienced disruption from individuals 
leaving the various bars and clubs on The Broadway and elsewhere in the Town Centre, 
including late-night noise and dropping of rubbish. We had felt that these issues were becoming 
less acute of late. Approving this application as it stands, however, would represent a serious step 
backwards.

As you are no doubt aware, the premises are located in a cumulative impact zone. There is a high 
concentration of premises in the area, many of which serve alcohol until quite late in the evening. 
We understand that the area is a destination for evening entertainment, but licensing of premises 
for such activity must take into account the interests of local residents as well.

The above-referenced application would extend hours for the supply of alchohol and live music 
until well into the early hours of the morning seven days a week. We believe these hours run far 
past what should be permitted at the premises because they would not serve the four main 
licensing objectives. In particular:

—Prevention of crime and disorder. Alcohol would be served until 3 am at weekends and 2 am 
most other days, well past the operating hours of any public transport out of the area. Moreover, 
unless there is something more detailed in the application that we cannot see in the public 
register, there is absolutely no proposal to provide any security personnel or any responsibility 
on the part of the applicant to move guests of the business out of the area. The inevitable result 
will be increased disorder and potential for crime on this stretch of The Broadway and in the 
surrounding area.

—Public safety. The very late operating proposed operating hours will increase the likelihood 
that patrons under the influence of alcohol will attempt to use automobiles to return home.

—Prevention of Public Nuisance. As mentioned above, there is a history of disruption in the 
surrounding area that granting this licence would only perpetuate. Also, it is difficult to believe 
that live music at such late hours would not create excessive noise for surrounding residents

—Protection of children from harm. The business has previously distributed fliers encouraging 
local families to bring their children there to use the table tennis tables earlier in the day. How is 

Page 101



this proposed use (which we support) compatible with a premises whose real business is serving 
alcohol until early morning hours every day? 

We therefore urge you to reject the application as it stands, and to impose much tighter 
restrictions on licensed hours as well as the standard conditions that are applied to all licensed 
premises of this type, including adequate levels of security and monitoring, noise prevention, etc.

Yours faithfully,

Kristian Wiggert

Page 102



From: Kristian Wiggert 
Sent: 05 March 2018 13:29
To: Licensing
Cc: Councillor Charlie Chirico; Councillor Abdul Latif; Councillor James Holmes; 
Subject: Re: New Premises Licence Application WK/201711465–Objection

Dear Ms MacDonald

Thank you for your reply.  It was not clear from the register that the proposed new 
licence is similar to an existing licence for the premises.  To the extent any comments in 
the prior email refer to extensions of hours those are withdrawn.  However, the general 
objections stand.  

As this is an application for a “new premises licence” is the standard of review not de 
novo? 

If so, the Council should take the opportunity to re-evaluate the licensed hours of these 
premises.  The existing licensing hours were approved (in our view incorrectly) when 
the premises were occupied by a late night club.  They do not in our view strike a proper 
balance between business and residents, taking into account the four licensing 
objectives, the fact that the premises are in a cumulative impact zone and the general 
context of the location of the premises.    

Yours sincerely 

Kristian Wiggert

On Thursday, March 1, 2018, 11:31 am, Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@merton.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear Sir/Madam

LICENSING ACT 2003
SMASH, 82 THE BROADWAY, WIMBLEDON  SW19 1RH

I acknowledge receipt of your attached email and accept your representation as valid. 
However – PLEASE SEE BELOW.

Please note that your representation, including your name and address will be in the 
public domain and will be forwarded to the applicants in order that they may consider 
addressing your concerns, should they consider it appropriate.
 
You will be advised approximately 10 days prior to the date of the hearing that will be 
convened to determine this application of the place and time of the hearing and may 
attend in person to put your view before the Licensing Sub-committee members.

Page 103

mailto:Licensing.Licensing@merton.gov.uk


It is an offence to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in connection with an 
application which carries a maximum fine of £5000.

For your information, the application is for an existing premises that already 
benefits from a licence. The application has been made by the same company 
that hold the current one. The licence they hold at the moment is for the same 
times as are being applied for here except for Exhibition of a film on Sunday – 
extended by 30 minutes to 01:30.

I have also attached the conditions they are offering to be attached to their 
licence should it be granted. The conditions that are currently attached to the 
licence are available to view on our register which can be access via - 
https://www2.merton.gov.uk/business/licences/licensing/premiseslicenceregister
sandpending_applications.htm 

They have stated that this application is to make the new licence clearer than the 
present one, with conditions added as agreed with the Police Licensing Officer 
and Premises Licence Holder and then if granted as such, the existing licence will 
be surrendered.

I trust you find this information useful. Should you wish to withdraw your representation 
given the information above, please let us know.

Yours faithfully

Elizabeth Macdonald

Page 104

https://www2.merton.gov.uk/business/licences/licensing/premiseslicenceregistersandpending_applications.htm
https://www2.merton.gov.uk/business/licences/licensing/premiseslicenceregistersandpending_applications.htm

	Agenda
	4 Premier Inn (Proposed), 153-161 The Broadway, Wimbledon, SW19 1NE
	Licensing Report Premier Inn
	New Premises Application - Premier Inn (Proposed)
	A1 Plan
	A3 Plans
	Representation 1 - S Holford
	Representation 2  J and J Seckington
	Representation 3 - S Sharp
	Representation 4 - WEHRA
	Additional Correspondence

	5 Smash, 82 The Broadway, London, SW19 1RH
	Covering Letter
	New Premises Application
	Current premises licence
	New Premises Plans
	Letter of Support - Metropolitan Police
	Letter of Support - B Ford
	Representation 1 - Councillor Chirico
	Representation 2 - WEHRA
	Representation 3 - K Wiggert
	K Wiggert Additional Comments


